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Although Parkersburg has changed physically and new buildings have been
erected, the Wood County Courthouse remains an imposing structure. Typical of
Richardsonian Romanesque architecture, it is massive in scope, yet subtle in
design, and has not lost its architectural integrity over the years. As seen
in the following detailed description, this building was well planned, solidly
constructed and has become a cherished landmark for the citizens of Wood County.

The Wood County Courthouse is a three and one-half story masonry structure
faced in rock-face stone. This intricately decorated and carved building covers
an area of 88 x 99 feet and has a magnificent 100 foot éntrance tower. There
are main recessed arched openings to both Market and Third Streets and secondary
openings to the northeast and southwest. Each entrance arch is comprised of
smooth stone vouissoirs and granite piers whose impost and capitals are richly
carved foliate patterns and grotesques. The archivolt of the arch intrados at
the Market and Third Street elevations is richly carved.

Over the southwest entrance, centered in the carved stone above the door,
is the bust of a laughing woman, arms upraised, supporting what appears to be a
basket or a crown. The central figure above the opposite, or Third Street en-
trance, is the bust of a man carved with a solemn expression, heavy moustache,
and a long flowing beard.  His upraised arms are so well executed that details-
of the hands are plainly discernible from the street. Above the head, there is
carved a full, round face with lines streaming from it, perhaps signifying the
rays of the sun.

The Courthouse contains several steeply-pitched wall dormers--the most
elaborate one has three circles that form a triangle in its gable. They all
have stone coping and coupled windows. The roof is hipped and with the ex-
ception of the dormer and tower interruptions, the building is encompassed by
a denticulated cornice.

The uniformity of the window placements, the massive Romanesque tower, and
theé intricate details of ‘the sculptured figures are certainly rare treasures.
For example, above the side (east) entrance is-a tourelle which extends to the
hipped roof. It is marked by several arched windows and rests upon a base of
beautifully sculptured acanthus leaves. Two sun-burst faces and the face of a
cherub decorate the field. 1In the center of the acanthus field is the crowned
torso of a bearded god; his uplifted arms form a console and his acanthus
covered midrift extends through the keystone of the doorway below.

Of course, the interior of the Courthouse has lost much of its original
symmetry due to expedient additions and remodeling. For example, the original
courtroom was two floors in height, and its outside lobby reached to the roof
with a huge stained-glass dome. In time, a new floor was built dividing the
courtroom and the lobby horizontally into two spaces and the dome was removed.
Items in the interior that should receive special attention are one iron stair-
way, the stained glass window of the courtroom, the capitals of the structural
piers, and portions of the mosaic floor.
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In summary, whether it is decided that the interior would be chiefly justified
for museum use, private offices, or continued use as the center of county govern-
ment, the building should remain as a community landmark. As stated by architect
Perry E. Borchers of Ohio State University, "For its exterior quality alone, this
building clearly deserves a place on the National Register of Historic Places."
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STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANCE

When Wood County was established by the Virginia Assembly in 1798, its official
business was conducted in the home of Hugh Phelps, from which Wood County's first
sheriff, Colonel William Lowther, carried out the obligations of his office. As the
county grew with the commerce that flowed on the Ohio and Little Kanawha rivers, a
new two-story building of hewn logs was built about 350 feet from the Ohio River,
facing the Little Kanawha. It was there that the citizens adopted resolutions, in-
forming the governor and president of the Burr-Blennerhassett conspiracy. This
structure was in use from 1802 to 1817 and was probably the first public building
in Parkersburg. Since the upper floor was used as the courthouse and the lower as
the jail, the stocks, pillory, and whipping post were in evidence nearby.

The next courthouse, built in 1817, was moved from the rivers and located on
what is known today as Court Square. This building stood on land donated to the
county by William and Mary Robinson. They had purchased the property from Mary's
father, Alexander Parker, in May 1811. 1In 1783, Parker acquired the land from
Robert Thronton who, in turn, had received preemption claims to the land on which
Parkersburg now stands by a "Tomahawk entry." Of course, this information lends
much historic significance to this particular plot of public land, on which the
present courthouse stands today.

Being the first substantial courthouse, this 1817 structure was considered an
elegant'building, with a fan-light over the door and a tall bell tower, topped with
a weather vane. As the area grew and prospered, however, this building was soon
outmoded. In 1860 a handsome two-story brick edifice in Greek style with white
pillars and a tall spire was erected on or near the location of the previous one..
It not only served the county but was also used by the city government until a city
building was constructed in 18%97. Costing $25,000, this courthouse was considered
one of the finest in western Virginia. One of Wood County's most famous circuit
judges, Arthur I. Boreman, held court there from 1861 to 1863, resmgnlng to become
West Virginia's first governor. He returned for a second tenure on the bench,
serving from 1889 to 1896.

Because of heavy lightning damage in 1885 and the continued prosperity re-
sulting from river commerce and the oil and gas boom of the surrounding area, county
officials decided the thirty—seven year old building was too small. The third
.courthouse constructed on what is Court Square is the one standing today, with its
cornerstone laid October 5, 1899. As a symbol of continuity, the huge bell, cast
in 1860, was salvaged from the previous courthouse and still rests in the elegant
.Romanesque tower of the present building.
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The present Wood County Courthouse is an outstanding architectural example of
American Romanesque, inspired by H. H. Richardson, architect, whose influence can
be seen in many 19th century public buildings. The unusual vertical quality of the
building is emphasized by a 100 foot entrance tower and by steeply pitched corner
pavilions with pyramidal tile covered roofs and gabled wall dormers. The heavy
and durable rock-faced walls are set upon a raised basement and pierced by arched
window and door openings, including the major north-south recessed arched entrances
embellished with enriched stone archivolts, smooth stone voussoirs, and carvings:
of foliage and grotesques. A fountain at the Market Street entrance features a
bronze memorial bust of J. J. Jackson of Parkersburg by sculptor Massey Rhind.

The preservation of these features of Richardsonian Romanesque architecture is a
most desirable goal for our nation because it is probably the first style to be
developed in the United States rather than Europe. It is even more urgent to re-
tain the present courthouse because it has been deemed architecturally superior in
style to the courthouses of adjacent counties. In addition, it would certainly not
be feasible today to attempt to reproduce the skill and workmanship evident in the
sturdy exterior walls of this building.

Architect Perry Borchers of Ohio State University stated in 1973 that "Four
complete facades of stone, ornamented with carvings, represent considerable ex-
penditure and display of civic pride in 1899." When Theodore Roosevelt visited
Parkersburg on April 5, 1912, during the 1912 presidential campaign and delivered
his address from the Market Street entrance of the courthouse, that same pride
was evident. When a majority of the people of Wood County voted in favor of pre-
serving the old courthouse on November 7, 1978, it was clear that they had not
broken with their proud past.

In conclusion, in this time of great change, when attitudes and values are
often tried and tested, it is important that a people retain their heritage. In
an attempt to preserve their courthouse, the people of Wood County are acknowledging
a debt to their forefathers on whose ' perseverance, dedication and sacrifice a
successful community was built.
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"Five Separate Structures Have Served County Court," The Parkersburg News,
December 26,. 1976.

"Parkersburg Voters Save Old Courthouse", Preservation News, The National Trust
for Historic Preservation, February 1979, p.2.
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by Market Street. The northeast elevation boundary abuts a parking lot of

the Parkersburg Urban Renewal Authority and the southwest elevation boundary

is formed by the boundary of Court Square with property owned by the Bureau
of Public Debt.



